
 AGENDA 

 PROPERTY STANDARDS 

APPEAL MEETING 
August 11, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, Town Hall 

   
Online Agenda:  Anything in blue denotes an attachment/link. By clicking the links on the agenda   

page, you can jump directly to that section of the agenda. To maneuver back to 
the agenda page use the Ctrl + Home keys simultaneously OR use the 
“Bookmark” icon on the navigation panel to the left of your screen. 

 

Alternative formats available upon request by contacting:  
sarah.moore@ajax.ca or 905-619-2529 ext. 3347 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of Minutes  

 
2.1     June 9, 2016…………………………………………………………………………….Page 2 
 

3. Public Meeting Appeals 
 
3.1  Property Standards Appeal Committee  
 
 3.1.1 Whilby – 90 Church Street South……………………………………..……...Page 21 
 
 3.1.2 Endless Fun Inc. – 400 Monarch Avenue, Unit 14…………………………Page 49 
  

4. Verbal Update 
 
4.1  Animal Services Committee 
 
  4.1.1 Bannerman Appeal – 49 Iles Street 
 
4.2  Property Standards Committee 
 
  4.2.1 McNee Appeal – 16 Garnett Drive 
 
  4.2.2    Speed Appeal – 25 Meekings Drive 
 

5. Adjournment 
 

mailto:sarah.moore@ajax.ca


MINUTES OF THE 

ANIMAL SERVICES/PROPERTY STANDARDS APPEAL COMMITTEE 

MEETING HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, AJAX TOWN HALL 

At 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 9, 2016 
 

 

Present:       Members                                                             - K. Barrett 

- A. Bridgeman 

- S. DeSouza 

- D. Jean 

- O. Lambert 

                                                                                                                            

  Staff      - K. Little, Secretary  

        - D. Hannan, Staff Resource  

        - J. Lang, MLEO 

        - T. Abott, MLEO 

        - S. Neal, MLEO 

   

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Chair Barrett called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m., She then explained the process 

of the meeting, the order of evidence being given and that the Committee will make a 

decision at the end of the proceedings.  She explained that the appellants could either 

appeal the decision to the General Government Committee, including the appropriate 

fee and/or to the Superior Court of Ontario, if they do not agree with tonight’s 

outcome. She asked that everyone turn their cell phones off. 

  

2. Adoption of Minutes 

 

Moved by: Member Lambert 

 

That the Minutes of the Animal Services/Property Standards Appeal Committee held 

on April 14, 2016, with the necessary change being made, be adopted. 

 

         Carried. 

 

3. Public Meeting Appeals 

 

3.1 Animal Services Appeal Committee 

 

Bannerman Appeal – 49 Iles Street 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Mrs. Bannerman was in attendance and she replied that she 

was.  Chair Barrett then asked Officer Lang, Mrs. Bannerman and the 

complainant, Mrs. Sharma, to come up to the front.   

2



 Chair Barrett then asked Officer Lang to give his testimony. 

 

Officer Lang explained that he had received a report of a dog bite incident 

involving two dogs in the area of Card Street and Harkins Street that occurred on 

March 14, 2016 at approximately 6:30-6:45 p.m.  On March 21, 2016 he 

contacted the complainant, Mangla Sharma, asking for a statement, pictures and 

any vet records.  She explained that she was walking her small breed dog, “Kiev” 

on Card Street walking towards Harkins when she saw the appellant, Mrs. 

Bannerman with 2 dogs on leashes and another female with her.  Mrs. Sharma 

told Officer Lang that the appellant’s dog started barking and pulled the appellant 

and her other dog towards Kiev.  The appellant’s dog bit onto Kiev near his face 

and 2 male residents from 1 Card Street came to assist and were successful in 

separating the dogs from each other.  He explained that there were 2 pictures of 

the wound in the agenda package, the first one showed the open wound and the 

second picture showed the wound with 3 stitches in it.  On March 23, 2016, 

Officer Lang attended 1 Card Street to speak with Carlos Araujo and his adult 

son, David, who were the witnesses to the incident.  They were not available to 

attend tonight’s meeting.  On March 22, 2016, Officer Lang attended 49 Iles 

Street and attempted to speak with the appellant, however she was not home.  

After several more attempts to speak with the appellant, due to the appellant not 

being home or Officer Lang not being in the office, she was provided with a pdf 

copy of the Order to Restrain. 

 

Officer Lang went through the Order to Restrain with the Committee members 

item by item, explaining to the Committee that the dog is licensed with the Town 

and they have a secured and fenced backyard. 

 

Member Lambert asked Officer Lang if he had seen “Maple”, the dog involved in 

the attack at the Bannerman’s home.  He replied that he had visited and met both 

the Bannerman’s dogs.  Maple seemed friendly towards him. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Officer Lang if he had received confirmation from a 

Medical Officer or anyone else that the injury sustained by Kiev was from a dog 

bite or from being pulled away from Maple.  He replied that he would not receive 

this information. 

 

Member Jean mentioned the 10m distance starting from the dogs barking to a bite 

occurring.  Were the dog owners dragged 10m and then the bite ensued. 

 

Officer Lang explained that to his knowledge, the 2 dogs went towards Harkins 

Street.  He doesn’t know what provoked it.  He agreed that the appellant may 

have been pulled. 

 

Member Jean asked if Kiev was barking back?  Officer Lang replied that he did 

not know. 

 

3



 

Member DeSouza asked who was walking Maple at the time of the incident.  Mrs. 

Bannerman replied that she was and her daughter was present. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mrs. Mangla Sharma to read her statement.  She explained 

that the 2 dogs started barking and dragging towards Kiev when they saw her dog.  

She stated that during the attack she was shouting and screaming.  She confirmed 

that the residents of 1 Card Street came outside during the attack.  She did not 

hear Linda Bannerman apologize and her dog is now scared to walk outside.  

They have also stopped walking on Card and Harkins.  Mrs. Sharma’s vet said 

Kiev could have lost his eye. She also told the Committee that Linda Bannerman 

offered compensation for the vet bill and that she paid it. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Ms. Sharma how her dog is doing today.  She explained 

that she is still scared and traumatized.  The wound has healed and the fur has 

grown back. 

 

Member Jean confirmed from Mrs. Bannerman’s statement that Kiev’s leash was 

broken during the attack.  Mrs. Sharma said that the leash broke during the event. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mrs. Sharma if she could describe how the leash broke.  Did 

it get torn?  She explained that the hook part got broken, not the leash. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mrs. Bannerman if she had any questions and she said she did 

not. 

 

Mrs. Bannerman stated that she was asking for revocation of the Order.  She said 

Maple is a young dog and this was not a reflection of her behavior.  She stated 

that during the attack all the dogs ran together, all the dogs were biting, there was 

confusion, noise, etc. and she did call the dog’s name.  She explained that the two  

men came over at this time, trying to help, while one straddled Maple and 

delivered karate chop blows to her nose.  She believes that if the men had not 

been there, the incident would have stopped sooner.  She said that this closed her 

dog’s jaws onto the other dog’s cheek and believes that the dogs were just play 

fighting.  Mrs. Bannerman told the Committee that Kathy Asling, founder of the 

Animal Guardian Society, thinks it was just a random tooth puncture.  She 

believes it to be an isolated incident, and that the two men made it worse.  There 

is no history of this ever happening before and that the letters in the agenda 

package are character references for Linda and her dog, Maple.  She told the 

Committee that Maple is wearing her muzzle and she brought it tonight to show 

the committee.  She believes that this incident does not describe her true behavior. 

 

Member Lambert asked if any of the dogs were barking.  Mrs. Bannerman said 

that probably all the dogs were barking and that the dogs misunderstood their 

body language.  Member Lambert asked where the other dog was.  Mrs. 

Bannerman said that she was right there.  Her focus was on Maple and Bailee was 

4



right there.  Member Lambert asked has anything like this happened before and 

she said it has not. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if anything has happened to Maple and Mrs. Bannerman 

said that she is scared to walk by men.  She also told the Committee that Mrs. 

Sharma still does walk by her house with Kiev. 

 

Member Lambert asked how Mrs. Bannerman knows Kathy Asling.  Does she 

know Maple?  She explained to the Committee that she attended an 8 week 

training program with Ms. Asling as she got Maple from her.  She has known Ms. 

Asling for about 10 years.  Maple and Bailee stay at Kathy’s house when they go 

away.  She also buys her dog food there. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Mrs. Bannerman when she got Maple and she said she 

was 7 months old when she got her.  The Animal Guardian Society had 

knowledge that Maple came from a rescue in the US.  Mrs. Bannerman first 

fostered and then adopted Maple. 

 

Chair Barrett asked how old was Maple when Mrs. Bannerman got her and she 

replied that she was 7 months old.  Chair Barrett asked were all the dogs barking 

from 10 feet away?  She explained that the other dog on the side was barking as 

well.  Chair Barrett asked how old was her daughter.  She said that she is 18.  Is 

Kathy Asling an expert?  Mrs. Bannerman replied that yes she is and has been 

fore more than 30 years.  Chair Barrett said that Ms. Asling mentioned in her 

letter that Maple exhibited herding behavior.  What does this mean?  Mrs. 

Bannerman explained that herding is when a dog tries to get all the dogs together.  

Chair Barrett asked if there was any nipping and Mrs. Bannerman replied there 

wasn’t. 

 

Member DeSouza asked what kind of leash was Maple wearing?  She replied that 

it was a 6’ heavy type leash. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked Mrs. Bannerman if it was common to meet other dogs 

when they were walking.  She replied that she wouldn’t go up to them unless she 

knows them.  Member Bridgeman asked her if her dogs were pulling her?  She 

replied that she was caught unaware. 

 

Chair Barrett confirmed that Mrs. Bannerman has a muzzle, a leash and a chain.  

She also has a proper fence and a licence.  She asked Mrs. Bannerman which 

section of the Order she was appealing.  She replied all of it, essentially the 

muzzle part. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if Mrs. Bannerman’s dog had shown any other 

tendencies?  She replied that it hasn’t.  Do your dogs sit when you come into 

contact with other dogs?  Yes they do. 

 

5



Chair Barrett asked if Mrs. Bannerman noticed any blood at the time of the event 

and she said that Kiev’s cheek was wet, but that there was no blood on her dogs. 

 

Member DeSouza confirmed that Mrs. Bannerman noticed saliva.  What did you 

do then? She told the Committee that her daughter took the dogs home and she 

could not see any wound.  When she was checking, Kiev gave her a little nip, 

knowing he was under stress. 

 

Member Jean asked if the dogs really were 10m apart.  Mrs. Bannerman replied 

that it was 10 feet for sure, a long distance.  There was some degree of playfulness 

and a misunderstanding in the dogs body language.  Maple just wanted to play.  

Member Jean wanted to confirm that Maple was not running to attack?  Mrs. 

Bannerman said she wasn’t. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if Mrs. Bannerman uses a choke chain or collar?  She 

uses a gentle leader, as she believes it is a better way to control the dog.  Member 

DeSouza asked how much does Maple weigh?  She replied about 50 lbs. 

Officer Lang was asked if he had any questions for Mrs. Bannerman.  He asked 

her if she knew the circumstances of where Maple came from.  She explained that 

she came from part of a hoarding raid in the US.  The farmer was charged and the 

dogs were sent to different foster cares. 

 

The daughter of Mrs. Bannerman spoke to the Committee, saying that the dogs 

were not that far apart when they came upon Kiev and it definitely wasn’t 10m 

away. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Lang to summarize.  He explained to the Committee 

that he used the Town’s software system to get the 10m distance.  It is the Town’s 

position that this was a biting incident.  From the witnesses, a bite occurred.  Mrs. 

Bannerman did not have complete control of her dog.  The Order should be 

upheld. 

 

Mrs. Bannerman told the Committee that the Order should be revoked.  She asked 

the Committee to look at the letters of reference in the agenda.  She said it was an 

isolated incident and that Maple does not need a muzzle. 

 

The Committee then went into deliberations. 

 

Member Bridgeman says that she feels for Mrs. Bannerman’s situation and she 

doesn’t envy the muzzle use.  The intervention by the two men may have 

exacerbated the situation.  She agrees with the Town, even though it might be an 

isolated incident. It may be a person next time. 

 

Member DeSouza asked that the dog be muzzled for 1-2 years and then Mrs. 

Bannerman to come back before the Committee. 

 

6



Member Bridgeman asked what will happen in the intervening years, as she 

hasn’t heard about training. 

 

Member DeSouza said that Mrs. Bannerman has complied with everything else in 

the Order, and wants the muzzle use to be for a restricted time period. 

 

Member Lambert asked what could happen next.  Even though it may have been 

an isolated incident, nothing was done to provoke it.  She wants the Order to be 

upheld.  If Mrs. Bannerman were to come back before the Committee in a few 

years time, the Committee will still be in charge of deciding what will happen 

next time. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if there had been any similar cases where the time for 

wearing a muzzle was changed from lifetime to a specific time period. 

 

Officer Lang said that in the 5 years he has been with the Town, it has happened 

once.  The Committee put a 1 year time frame on the muzzle requirement, and 3 

months later the dog bit again. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if it was a similar breed.  He replied that it was not. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Ms. Sharma if she observed Maple clamping down on Kiev.  

She said she did.  When the two residents hit Maple on the head, was there any 

reaction?  She did not notice, as she was too stressed out.   

 

She asked Mrs. Bannerman where was she when the guy hit Maple over the nose.  

She said that she just stood still.  Her dog weighs about 50 pounds. 

 

Member DeSouza asked where was Kiev during the altercation with Maple still 

holding on, the only way he got out was when the man pounded on him. 

 

Member Jean said that due to the dog being struck in the head, he couldn’t let go 

of Kiev. 

 

Chair Barrett stated that this was an unfortunate incident and confirmed that Kiev 

was being held in Maple’s mouth.  Although it may have been an isolated 

incident, it could have been much more serious.  Maple was not in the care of the 

Animal Guardian Society very long and attended 8 weeks of behavior training.  

Maple is known to have herding behavior, can involve some nipping.  The 

Bannerman’s have gates, leash, etc. and have complied with the majority of the 

Order.  It should be upheld. 

 

Member Jean watches dogs in the dog park play with each other.  He is still hung 

up on the distance.  It may have been a bite, but may have also been a little less 

than that. 

 

7



Member Bridgeman confirmed that Member Jean rides through the dog park on 

his bike and sees the dogs in there playing. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Mrs. Bannerman what was your impression of the 

situation?  She replied that Maple likes to meet other dogs, along with 4 leggeds.  

Maple initially ran up out of friendship and it was misinterpreted, which lead to a 

bite. 

 

Member Lambert asked was is the weight of Kiev and Ms. Sharma replied about 

28-29 pounds.  About half of the other dog’s weight. 

 

Chair Barrett said that the residents approached after the incident.  There was 

barking and pulling towards the dog.  Does this constitute aggressive behavour? 

 

Member Lambert said that one dog bit the other one and that the bite was at eye 

level.  The owner saw some saliva, not blood.  The end result was a bite/attack 

that was not provoked.  The Order stands. 

 

Member DeSouza agrees with the Order, other than the muzzle requirement.  She 

believes that Mrs. Bannerman should have the right to come back before the 

Committee in 2 years. 

 

Member Lambert said that this was on the Committee and nothing is being 

presented in terms of training, etc.  She doesn’t want it to happen a second time.  

The Order stands as is. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Mrs. Bannerman what measures will you take to ensure 

that this doesn’t happen again.  She explained that this has never happened before.   

She is willing to take another training course.  She believes that if barking is a 

sign of aggression, then all dogs in Ajax should be locked up.  She has taken all 

measures to adhere to the Order and believes there was no aggression. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mrs. Bannerman what type of muzzle does she have for 

Maple?  She replied that it is a cage-type muzzle, where she can still breathe, 

drink water, eat small items.   

 

Officer Lang told the Committee that this is a humane muzzling device. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if there were any problems putting it on Maple and she 

replied it’s not her favourite thing, but she still can breathe, drink, etc.  She can’t 

open her mouth fully to pant when it is hot outside. 

 

Member Bridgeman moved that the Order be upheld as written. 

 

Chair Barrett also agrees that the Committee should uphold the Order in its 

entirety. 

8



 

Member DeSouza told the Committee that the Order should be amended for the 

length of time for the muzzle requirement, up to 2 years, and then can come back 

before the Committee. 

 

Member Jean said if asked before this incident, Mrs. Bannerman would have said 

her dog doesn’t bite and then it bit.  The dogs were barking and pulling 10m or 10 

ft.  What would you say in 1-2 years ?   He believes the Order should be upheld or 

have it changed.  

 

Member DeSouza said that there was 1 previous time where the Committee put a 

time limit on the muzzle. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked if she could speak on her own Motion and D. Hannan, 

Staff Resource, told her she could not. 

 

Member Lambert asked Member DeSouza to discuss Member Bridgeman’s 

Motion. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Member DeSouza if she would like to amend Member 

Bridgeman’s Order. 

 

Member DeSouza said yes.  She moved a Motion to amend the Order to Restrain 

by changing Item #3 to put a time limit on using the humane muzzling device.  

Wants it to be for up to 2 years. 

 

Chair Barrett verified that she wants to amend Item #3. 

 

Member Bridgeman said that in the previous Order where there was a time limit 

put on the muzzle, the Committee had strong evidence from the dog owner to 

change his dog’s behavior. 

 

Member Lambert said she is not in agreement with the time extension and wants 

the Order to be kept as is. 

 

Member Jean not convinced this was a nagging, screaming incident. 

 

Chair Barrett checked that Member DeSouza wants to amend Item #3 with a two 

year cap on the muzzling device, at which time the Owner can come back before 

the Committee. 

 

All in favour.          Motion Lost. 

 

Member Bridgeman moves to uphold the Order as is. 

 

2 members in opposition, 2 in favour, the Chair broke the tie. 

9



You shall: 

 

1. Ensure that the dog is licensed with the Town of Ajax pursuant to the current 

Town of Ajax Dog and Cat By-law, as amended. 

 

2. Keep the dog restrained on a chain of sufficient strength to prevent any further 

attack or bite while the dog is on the property of its owner.  The dog must be 

kept back a minimum distance of three (3) meters from any property line, and 

the dog must be muzzled using a humane muzzling device to prevent biting. 

 

OR 

 

In the alternative the dog shall be kept in a secured and fenced yard, which 

fence shall be of sufficient height and strength to adequately prevent the dog 

from escaping.  In addition, where a gate forms a part of the fence, the gate 

shall have a self-closing and self-latching device, both of which shall be kept 

in good working order.  All fences on private property must comply with the 

Town’s Zoning By-law and the Town’s Fence By-law. 

 

3. When the dog is off the property of its owner, the dog shall be on a leash of no 

more than 1.8 meters in length and of sufficient strength to prevent an attack.  

The dog shall also be muzzled using a humane muzzling device to prevent the 

dog from biting. 

 

4. Keep the dog under the full control of a person of at least sixteen years of age 

while the dog is away from the owner’s property. 

 

5. Notify the Town of Ajax, Animal Services, in the event the dog is sold or 

ownership of the dog is otherwise transferred to any other person, or the dog 

is relocated to any other address besides the address referred to in this Order, 

of the new owner’s name and address within 5 days. 

 

 

Motion carried at 8:17 p.m. 

 

Chair Barrett asked for a 3 minute recess. 

 

3.2 Property Standards Appeal Committee 

 

McNee Appeal – 16 Garnett Drive 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Abott to give her synopsis of the complaint she received at 

16 Garnett Drive, Ajax.  She explained that 16 Garnett is a 2 storey home, with a hot 

tub and Jacuzzi in the backyard.  The Owner of the property is in attendance tonight.  

The property is not in character with the surrounding neighbourhood.  An Order was 

issued on April 19, 2016, with the due date for the work to be done by May 19, 2016.  

10



She returned on June 2, 2016 to the property and the garage door was closed and some 

garbage removed between the 2 cars in the driveway. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Mr. McNee was present tonight and he replied that he was. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if he had a pool and Officer Abott replied that yes, it is an 

inground pool. 

 

Chair Barrett noted that there was no picture of the eavestrough with the one piece 

hanging off.   She asked Officer Abott if all the cars were inoperable?  The silver car 

had flat tires, the black Infiniti had an expired trip permit and the red Nissan had a valid 

sticker. 

 

Mr. McNee asked if any of the Committee members had gone onto Lake Driveway or 

Garnett Drive and seen other properties with the paint peeling off the bay window.  

Chair Barrett replied they had not. 

 

Chair Barrett told Mr. McNee that Officer Abott had received a complaint about the 

appearance of the property and the garbage on it. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Officer Abott if she had seen anything hazardous on the 

property.  She replied that she did not. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Officer Christensen was here tonight as he originally attended 

with Officer Abott.  She replied that he was not here and only went with her due to Mr. 

McNee having an Order to Restrain on his dog. 

 

Mr. McNee said that he is not appealing the whole Order.  He told the Committee that 

the garbage is gone, cover gone from the pool, garbage and dog feces dealt with.  He 

wanted to know what are “domestic storage items”?  Officer Abott explained that you 

can have a ladder, wheelbarrow, etc., anything you would use inside or outside your 

house.  You can have domestic storage including a ladder, wheelbarrow and he is 

referring to recycling bins, all domestic storage.  All cars have valid stickers, no flat 

tires, one side of the gate to the pool has screws in it to keep it shut.  Garage door 

functions properly.  Flaking paint so minor from eggs being thrown at them 7 years 

ago.  They just need to be cleaned.  Why can’t he store things under his deck?  He took 

pictures today of houses with bay windows with flaking paint in the same area as his.  

He needs to replace the windows in the future.  The horizontal deck boards need to be 

stained, but it does not impede enjoyment.  Offered to show the pictures to the 

Committee, as he feels he is being picked on. 

 

Chair Barrett declined to accept the pictures as these were not part of this appeal 

package. 

 

Officer Abott and Mr. McNee did not have any questions. 

 

11



Member Lambert asked about Pictures 21 and 22/24 in the Agenda.  Mr. McNee told 

the Committee that the items are underneath the deck and no one can see them. Picture 

20 of 24, all those items are cleaned up. 

 

Member DeSouza asked what is in Picture 22 of 24.  Is it an empty propane tank?  Mr. 

McNee replied that it was.  He can’t find the attachment to hook it up to the bbq. 

 

Chair Barrett went through Schedule “A” of the Order Item by Item.  She asked Mr. 

McNee if Item #1 had been taken care of.  Yes.  Waiting for garbage day.  Item #2.  

Half complied with.  The debris is gone, balusters and steps to be put on.  When will it 

be completed?  Item #3 is complied with.  Item #4 complied with.  Item #5, the 

wheelbarrow in the backyard and recycling bins neatly stored at the side of the house.  

#6 complied with, #7 complied with, #8 the gate needs to be fixed.  Hardware issue.  #9 

Mr. McNee takes issue with the horizontal planks having to be stained, as you can’t see 

them.  There are no holes and the boards are not rotting. 

Item #10 he intends to replace the windows.  They are not leaking, at some point will 

replace them.  Seems pointless to paint them.  Item #11 overhang/flashing not down.  

Told the Committee that they refuse to see the pictures he brought in.  Item #12 the 

garage doors need to be cleaned more than painted.  They function perfectly.  Eggs 

tossed at them 7 years ago, along with his neighbour’s garage.  #13 is not a gutter, it is 

a downspout.  He can reattach it.  A couple of weeks it will all be done. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Mr. McNee in Item #11 what is the material made of.  Mr. 

McNee replied that it is made of galvanized metal.  Do you need a professional to fix it 

or can you do it yourself.  He replied that it just needs to be sanded and painted.  Will 

you replace the windows?  Mr. McNee said that his house is 27 years old and they have 

never been replaced. 

 

Member Lambert asked why Item Numbers 10, 11 and 12 were in the Order.  What is 

the reason they were asked to be fixed.  Officer Abott said the house is out of character 

and the property needs to be maintained. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Abott to summarize.  She said this property is out of 

character with the street and neighbourhood.  The number of items requiring fixing is 

why the Order was done.  Her pictures provide an accurate view of the issues.  A lot of 

the work was done today. 

 

Mr. McNee said that the garbage is gone, windows will be replaced.  Most of the work 

was done 3 days ago and today. 

 

The Committee then went into deliberations. 

 

Member DeSouza asked Officer Abott if this property had ever had any prior 

complaints.  She replied that she could not answer that question. 

 

Member Jean asked about the horizontal boards on the deck.  Is it peeling paint?  

12



Officer Abott told the Committee that they need to replace them with pressurized wood 

or stained.  If previously painted, would require paint. 

 

Member DeSouza asked if Mr. McNee wanted a new date set.  

 

Chair Barrett asked Mr. McNee when he could get all the issues rectified.  He replied 

that one month is reasonable as he is busy with his swimming pool company.  Including 

painting all items?  No relevance to painting the horizontal planks underneath and on 

top.  Deck may be changed in a few years.  No point putting a lot more money into it.  

By cleaning the garage doors, is that ok?  Officer Abott explained that Mr. McNee 

needs to paint around the frame. 

 

Member Jean asked about the storage under the deck.  Which section?  Officer Abott 

replied that there was an additional heater, pool equipment and garbage.  These items 

can attract pests and is unsightly.  The accumulation of debris is the issue. 

 

Member Bridgeman says she appreciates the other Committee members’ views. She 

told Mr. McNee that he drew attention to himself with the garbage accumulation.  

Remove items that need to be removed.   The property really needs to be cleaned up.  

For Items 10 and 11, she is content to remove these items from the Order. 

 

Member DeSouza agrees.  Mr. McNee will be replacing the windows in a year or two. 

 

Member Jean disagreed. He told the Committee that he sees lots of people painting in 

the neighbourhood.  Not up to Town standards.  A messy property doesn’t get there 

quickly.  He believes the Order should be upheld in its entirety. 

 

Member Bridgeman said to just paint the frames, not replace the windows. 

 

Chair Barrett said that painting the deck protects the wood.  Item #12 can be amended 

to be cleaned and frame only needs to be painted.  Order should be upheld, with 

amendment to Item #12.  How long does Mr. McNee need?  A month to comply with 

all items. 

 

Member Lambert made a Motion to uphold the Order, amending Item  #12 to clean the 

garage doors and paint the frames by July 16/2016. 

 

ORIGINAL ORDER 

 

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
ITEM   PARTICULARS OF REPAIRS TO BE EFFECTED 
 
 

1. Remove from the property, and legally dispose of all refuse and debris, and all 

unused and/or discarded items located in the side, rear and front yards, and 

13



underneath the rear raised deck/balcony including but not limited to: cardboard, 

cement, dead vegetation, household garbage, miscellaneous plastic and wood 

materials, plastic cups, beer and alcohol bottles and cans, broken glass, assorted 

food and beverage containers, and deteriorating pieces of wood/plywood. All yards 

shall be maintained in a good state of repair, kept clean and free from objects or 

conditions that might create an unsafe or unsightly condition out of character with 

the surrounding environment.  

 

2. Remove and legally dispose of all accumulations of garbage, debris and discarded 

items, including but not limited to beverage containers, cardboard, household waste, 

from the rear raised deck/balcony and ensure that the deck/balcony is maintained in 

a good state of repair, free from accumulations of garbage, and/or storage of items 

and does not create an unsightly appearance and provides safe passage.    

 

3. All garbage shall be stored in receptacles and made available in accordance with the 

waste collection policies, receptacles shall be screened from public view and not 

create an unsightly appearance.  

 

4. Clear the property of all accumulations of dog/animal feces located in the side, and 

rear yards and dispose of in accordance with applicable collection policies, and 

waste management by-laws. All yards shall be maintained so as not to create an 

unsafe and unsightly condition.  

 

5. Relocate all usable, domestic storage items currently being stored in the front yard 

to the side and/or rear yard and ensure all usable domestic storage items do not 

exceed 30% of the yard area, is neat, is for personal use; and is no greater than 2m 

in height.   

 

6. Reorganize all usable, domestic storage items currently being stored in the side 

yard, on the west side of the dwelling, so as to ensure that said storage is neat, is for 

personal use and does not create an unsightly appearance.  

 

7. Repair all inoperable vehicles, including but not limited to, a Silver Chrysler 

bearing expired Ontario Plate AYVC 148,  and Black Infinity bearing expired 

Ontario Plate BRYX 006, on the property so that they are operational and in a state 

of good repair, with valid license plates with current validation stickers affixed, that 

are registered to the appropriate vehicles with the Ministry of Transportation; 

      OR 
 

Remove all inoperable vehicles from the property and dispose of them in 

a legal manner; 

14



 
      OR 
 

Relocating the vehicles so they are wholly located within a legally erected 

garage out of view of the public. 
 

8. Secure the gates that form part of the fence which encloses the rear and side yards 

and are located on both sides of the dwelling with a self-closing and latching device 

and lock, and ensure the gate is kept locked at all times unless a responsible person 

is directly supervising the swimming pool.  

 

9. Repair and repaint the rear raised deck/balcony and all of its components, including 

but not limited to, railing, balusters, supports beams, support posts, handrails, deck 

boards, and stairs so as to ensure that the rear raised deck/balcony and all of its 

components are in compliance with the Ontario Building Code, is structurally 

sound, is in a good state of repair, protected by paint or other weather resistant 

material so as not to present an unsightly appearance.  

 

Please note as the registered owner of the property you will be responsible for 
applying for and receiving approval for any Building Permit(s) that maybe 
required by the Ontario Building Code, and any other applicable legislation. 
Please contact the Building Services Department at 905-619-2529, with regards to 
the application and process for the construction or reconstruction of the rear 
deck/balcony and the specifications for railings and guards required for the rear 
deck/balcony.  
 

 

10. Repair and repaint all window and door frames so as to ensure that the frames are 

in a good state of repair, protected by paint or other weather resistant material so as 

not to present an unsightly appearance.  

 

11. Repair and repaint the overhang/flashing located above the front bay/bow window 

that is located on the ground floor at the front of the dwelling. The 

overhang/flashing shall be in a good state of repair, be structurally sound and not 

create an unsightly appearance.  

 

12. Repair and repaint the two front garage doors so as to ensure that both doors are in 

operating condition and can fully close are in a good state of repair, protected by 

paint or other weather resistant material so as not to present an unsightly 

appearance.  

 

15



13. Repair and/or replace the broken gutter that is hanging at the front of the home on 

the second level above the garage so as to ensure that it is maintained in a good state 

of repair.  

 

AMENDED ORDER 

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
ITEM   PARTICULARS OF REPAIRS TO BE EFFECTED 
 
 

1. Remove from the property, and legally dispose of all refuse and debris, and all 

unused and/or discarded items located in the side, rear and front yards, and 

underneath the rear raised deck/balcony including but not limited to: cardboard, 

cement, dead vegetation, household garbage, miscellaneous plastic and wood 

materials, plastic cups, beer and alcohol bottles and cans, broken glass, assorted 

food and beverage containers, and deteriorating pieces of wood/plywood. All yards 

shall be maintained in a good state of repair, kept clean and free from objects or 

conditions that might create an unsafe or unsightly condition out of character with 

the surrounding environment.  

 

2. Remove and legally dispose of all accumulations of garbage, debris and discarded 

items, including but not limited to beverage containers, cardboard, household waste, 

from the rear raised deck/balcony and ensure that the deck/balcony is maintained in 

a good state of repair, free from accumulations of garbage, and/or storage of items 

and does not create an unsightly appearance and provides safe passage.    

 

3. All garbage shall be stored in receptacles and made available in accordance with the 

waste collection policies, receptacles shall be screened from public view and not 

create an unsightly appearance.  

 

4. Clear the property of all accumulations of dog/animal feces located in the side, and 

rear yards and dispose of in accordance with applicable collection policies, and 

waste management by-laws. All yards shall be maintained so as not to create an 

unsafe and unsightly condition.  

 

5. Relocate all usable, domestic storage items currently being stored in the front yard 

to the side and/or rear yard and ensure all usable domestic storage items do not 

exceed 30% of the yard area, is neat, is for personal use; and is no greater than 2m 

in height.   

 

16



6. Reorganize all usable, domestic storage items currently being stored in the side 

yard, on the west side of the dwelling, so as to ensure that said storage is neat, is for 

personal use and does not create an unsightly appearance.  

 

7. Repair all inoperable vehicles, including but not limited to, a Silver Chrysler 

bearing expired Ontario Plate AYVC 148,  and Black Infinity bearing expired 

Ontario Plate BRYX 006, on the property so that they are operational and in a state 

of good repair, with valid license plates with current validation stickers affixed, that 

are registered to the appropriate vehicles with the Ministry of Transportation; 

      OR 
 

Remove all inoperable vehicles from the property and dispose of them in 

a legal manner; 
 
      OR 
 

Relocating the vehicles so they are wholly located within a legally erected 

garage out of view of the public. 
 

8. Secure the gates that form part of the fence which encloses the rear and side yards 

and are located on both sides of the dwelling with a self-closing and latching device 

and lock, and ensure the gate is kept locked at all times unless a responsible person 

is directly supervising the swimming pool.  

 

9. Repair and repaint the rear raised deck/balcony and all of its components, including 

but not limited to, railing, balusters, supports beams, support posts, handrails, deck 

boards, and stairs so as to ensure that the rear raised deck/balcony and all of its 

components are in compliance with the Ontario Building Code, is structurally 

sound, is in a good state of repair, protected by paint or other weather resistant 

material so as not to present an unsightly appearance.  

 

Please note as the registered owner of the property you will be responsible for 
applying for and receiving approval for any Building Permit(s) that maybe 
required by the Ontario Building Code, and any other applicable legislation. 
Please contact the Building Services Department at 905-619-2529, with regards to 
the application and process for the construction or reconstruction of the rear 
deck/balcony and the specifications for railings and guards required for the rear 
deck/balcony.  
 

 

10. Repair and repaint all window and door frames so as to ensure that the frames are 

in a good state of repair, protected by paint or other weather resistant material so as 

not to present an unsightly appearance.  

17



 

11. Repair and repaint the overhang/flashing located above the front bay/bow window 

that is located on the ground floor at the front of the dwelling. The 

overhang/flashing shall be in a good state of repair, be structurally sound and not 

create an unsightly appearance.  

 

12. Clean the two front garage doors and paint the door frames.  

 

13. Repair and/or replace the broken gutter that is hanging at the front of the home on 

the second level above the garage so as to ensure that it is maintained in a good state 

of repair.  

 

That this work be completed by July 16, 2016. 

 

           All in favour. 

 

Carried at 9:08 p.m. 

 

3.1.2 Speed Appeal – 25 Meekings Drive 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Mr. Speed was present.  He replied he was.  She asked if all he 

was appealing tonight was a time extension and he said yes. 

She then made a motion to the move the appellant’s submission to the beginning of the 

appeal.   

All in favour. 

 

He is asking for a time extension to take down the tree.  He agrees it is unsightly, but 

not a hazard.  He needs time to do the work.  Asking for the 3rd week of July or 1st week 

of August, as he is on vacation at that time. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked if Mr. Speed had had any contact with arborists.  He has 

spoken to them over the phone but they have not been out to see the tree.  He needs to 

look into the timeline and pricing.  Member Bridgeman asked if the company was  

removing the tree or are you doing it yourself.  Can they look at it without you being 

there?  He wants to be there as he may get other trees taken down. 

 

Member DeSouza confirmed that Craig, the Town Arborist, says the tree is a hazard. 

Tree has been dead for a long time and needs to be taken down. 

 

Officer Neal stated that if the tree falls there are houses all around him or it may hit an 

individual.  The Town certified arborist says it is a hazard.  Mr. Speed says he is the 

only one near the tree when he mows the lawn. 

 

Chair Barrett questioned the 3rd week of July?  Mr. Speed replied no, he would like the 

4th week of July to the end of the 1st week of August.  He wants to be around. 

18



 

Member DeSouza questioned the date.  Confirmed with Mr. Speed he wants the 4th 

week of July to 1st week of August.  She asked him if he was getting 2 estimates by that 

time.  He replied that he was. 

 

Member Bridgeman doesn’t agree to give that long.  One month is ok.  Town thinks it 

is a hazard, not disagreeing with hazard.    Mr. Speed asked what is the definition of a 

hazard?  This tree is on private property and if it were to fall, right or left, it would not 

come close to anyone.  If it fell backyards, it also would not hit anything. 

 

Chair Barrett asked what is a hazard?  Officer Neal says the tree has been dead for a 

while and needs to come down as soon as possible, as confirmed by the Town certified 

arborist. 

 

Member Lambert asked how high is the tree?  Both Officer Neal and Mr. Speed said it 

is approximately 25’ to 30’ high.  It is not a small tree. 

 

Chair Barrett agrees the tree is a hazard.  She realizes that Mr. Speed needs time to get 

quotes and then remove the tree.  He initially indicated he needs 1-2 months to get the 

work done, however, she believes that one month from today is adequate to get the 

work done. 

 

Member Lambert made a Motion to have the work done by July 19, 2016. 

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
ITEM   PARTICULARS OF REPAIRS TO BE EFFECTED 
 

1. Remove the dead Poplar tree located towards the Far East end of the rear 

yard in the center of the yard. 

 
Note: The portion of land in which the described tree is located is within 
Private Open Space, however a Tree Cutting Permit is not required to be 
obtained as the tree is dead and hazardous. 
 

2. Remove all debris from the property that is created by the work being 

carried out in item 1 and legally dispose of it. 

 

3. That the work be done by July 19, 2016. 

 
All in favour. 

 

 

This portion of the meeting was done at 9:22 p.m. 

19



 

4 Verbal Update 

 

4.1 Animal Services Committee 

 

4.1.1 Curran Appeal – 2914 Beachview Street 

 

D. Hannan, Staff Resource, told the Committee that the Order to Restrain has been 

fully upheld. 

 

4.2 Property Standards Committee 

 

4.2.1 Rashid Appeal – 61 Wilce Drive 

 

D. Hannan, Staff Resource, told the Committee that this property is in full compliance. 

 

Member Bridgeman made a Motion to Adjourn at 9:24 p.m. 

 

          All in favour. 

 

 

 

_______________            

Chair  

 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99


	June 9.16 Minutes
	part 1 90 church st
	part 2 90 church st
	part 1 400 monarch
	part 2 400 monarch
	Blank Page



